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'FINAL DECISION AND ORDER
This matter arose under the Maryland Qccupational Safety and Health Act, Labor and

Employment Article, Title 5, Annotated Code

inspection on September 7, 2006, the Maryland

of Mar,

vland. Following a planned job site

Occu‘pationa Safety and Health Unit of the

Division of Labor and Industry (“MOSH”) issued two citations to Chuck’s Electrical Service

Inc. (“Employer™), alleging various violations.
which the parties introduced evidence, presente
D. Harrison Pratt, Administrative Law Judge si
a Proposed Decision‘ recommending that one of

The Employer filed a timely request for
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FINDING

S OF FACT
On September 7, 2QO6, the Employer was doing elegtrical work on a job at 25390

Richardson Road in Federalsburg, Maryland. FF 1. On the morning of September 7, 2006, a

MOSH assigned Compliance Officer, Stephen Ridgell (“MOSH Inspector” or “Inspector”),

to conduct a routine safety inspection of the site. During his inspection, the MOSH Inspector

observed one of the Employer’s employees, Mr. JosTua, drilling holes in a metal column

using three electrical cords (extension cords) t

into an outlet in the side of the building. Usin

hat WTC connected to each other and plugged

tests, the MOSH Inspector

g two Fiffere

examined the electrical outlet in which the cords We{:e plugged and determined that the outlet

was not properly grounded. The Employee’s foreman, Mr.

confirmed that it was not properly grounded.

When inspecting the kitchen area of th

oeder, also tested the outlet and

e school, a room used by the Employer as a

staging area, the MOSH Inspector observed an electﬁca] panel being used by the Employer’s

employees loosely covered by a piece of cardt
word “HOT” in large red letters. The metal d
missing, and there was a gap of about four inc
of the panel. Tr. 29-30; MOSH Exhibit 5. Sor
board were energized. Immediately in front o
for several feet through a nearby door and into
panel board was an electrical outlet into which

were in contact with the water on the floor.

voard. On the outside of the cardboard was the

bors that would normally cover the panel were
hes above the top of the cardboard and the top
ne of the electrical wires to and from the panel
f the pa{mel board was a stream of water that ran

another room| A few inches to the left of the

Pursuant to that inspection, on October 4, 2006, MOSH issued two citations against

the Employer, each of which was appealed. M

e
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Items 1 and 2 and the acécmpanying penalties|and dismissed Citation 2, Item 1. On review,
the Employer objects to Citation 1. As neither party has requested review of Citation 2, the
HE’s decision regarding tha"[ Citation will stand, and the Commissioner is reviewing only
Citation 1, Items 1 and 2. |

DISCUSSION

Citation 1, Item 1

MOSH charged the Employer with a serious violation of 29 CFR § 1926.404(£)(6),
which requires that “[t]he path to ground from [circuits, equipment, and enclosures shall be
permanent and continuous.”| MOSH Exhibits 1 and 7. The MOSH Inspector testified that
both he and Mr. Roeder tested the extension cords being used by Mr. Joshua to drill hoes into

f the metal columns and determined that they had an open ground, i.e. that the path to ground

was not permanent and continuous. Tr. 25-28." This|testimony is supported by photographic

evidence. See MOSH Exhibit 5.

The Employer has not disputed that the|elec ical cords and outlet used by Mr. Joshua
were not grounded. Rev. Tr. 10; Tr. 26-29. Instead, ]s Employer argues before the
Commissioner that, because they were using the existing wiring in the building as temporary
wiring and there was no grounded conductor present, their decision to install ground fault
circuit interrupters was in compliance with the National Electrical Code, NEC 406.3-3(b)(c),

and thus should not have been the basis of a citation. Rev. Tr, 10-11. However, the fact

remains that, regardless of compliance with the NEC,|the Employer was not in compliance

with 29 CFR § 1926.404(f)(6), which has been|adopted into Maryland Law and is a

|
; ! Herein, the transcript of the February 21, 2007 hearing las “Tr.” and the transcript of the September 6, 2007
% ‘ review hearing before the Commissioner as “Rev. Tr.”. ‘




mandatory standard. COMAR 09.12.31.00. As the m

and continuous path to ground”, the Commissjoner u

Citation 1, Item 2

MOSH cited the Employer with a serigus vio

|
requires that “[p]anelboards shall be mounted

designed for the purpose and shall be dead front.” M

Employer does not dispute the factual findings regar

the inspection, but questions MOSH’s definition of

cover underneath the cardbc;ard marked “HOT|
Exhibit 4 constituted a “dead front” cover. Tr.

“Dead front” is defined in CFR § 1926
person on the operating side of the equipment.
testified that Mr. Roeder tol(ii him during the in
30. The MOSH Inspector Mer testified that
acceptable way to prevent a hazard because thg
through anything located inside the box, allow
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box once Mr. Roeder told him that the panels were hc
to the water on the floor, he did not want to expose hi

40. While Mr. Roeder testified at one point that the ¢

in cabi

>

7-8.

ing co

andatory standard requires a “permanent

pholds Citation 1, Item 1.

lation of 29 CFR § 1926.405(d), whic.h
nets, cutout boxes, or enclosures

OSH Exhibits 1 and 10. On review, the
ding the panel board in use at the time of
dead front”, arguing that the panel board

and shown in picture number 9 of MOSH
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the cardboard box cover did not constitute an

7 cardlloard, unlike metal, could be pushed

tact with a live or energized part

not willing to go within three feet of the panel

bt or energized, because, especially due

mself to a potential serious hazard. Tr.

ardboard was merely an “extra

precaution” installed over an existing “dead panel”, and that there were no energized parts of

the panel under the cardboard because they we
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In assessing the cred;ibility of a witness
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For the foregoing reasons, the Commissioner
\

of NPR1c. 2008, };1ereby ORDERS:

1. Citation i, Item 1 for a serious [violation of 29

e |

' agéompanying penalty of $750.00, is AFFIRMED.
' |

2. Citation 1, Ttem 2 for a serious [violation of 29

accompanying penalty 0ij $1,000, is AFFIRMED.

|
This Order becomesz‘ final 15 days after it issu

filing a petition for review in the appropriate circuit court. C

of Labg

r and Industry on the 7”’ day

CFR § 1926.404(f)(6)and its

) CFR § 1926.405(d) and its

es. Judicial review may be requested by

onsult Labor and Employment

Article, § 5-215, Annotated }Code of Maryland, and the Maryland Rules, Title 7, Chapter 200.
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